ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 14, 2017
3:19 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss-Tonki ns, Chair
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Vice Chair
Representative Chris Tuck

Representati ve Adam Wol

Representative Gary Knopp

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Chris Birch
Represent ati ve DeLena Johnson
Representati ve Andy Josephson (alternate)
Representati ve Chuck Kopp (alternate)

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 82

"An Act relating to vehicle registration; relating to off-road
system restricted noncomercial drivers' |licenses; relating to
of f- hi ghway commercial drivers' licenses; relating to off-road
system eligible areas; and relating to notor vehicle liability
i nsurance. "

- MOVED CSHB 82( STA) OUT OF COMM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 74

"An Act relating to the inplementation of the federal REAL ID
Act of 2005; and relating to issuance of identification cards
and driver's licenses; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 112
"An Act relating to sexual assault by a peace officer against a
person who is a victim wtness, or perpetrator of a crine.”
- Bl LL HEARI NG CANCELED
HOUSE BI LL NO. 94

"An Act establishing Cctober 25 of each year as African Anerican
Sol diers' Contribution to Building the Al aska H ghway Day."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 14, 2017



- BILL HEARI NG CANCELED
SENATE BI LL NO 46
"An Act establishing October 25 of each year as African Anerican
Soldiers' Contribution to Building the Al aska H ghway Day."

- BILL HEARI NG CANCELED

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 82
SHORT TI TLE: RESTRI CTED OFF HWY DRI VER S LI CENSE
SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) KREI SS- TOWKI NS

01/ 25/ 17 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 25/ 17 (H STA, TRA

02/ 02/ 17 (H STA AT 3: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120
02/ 02/ 17 (H) Schedul ed but Not Heard

02/ 23/ 17 (H STA AT 3: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120
02/ 23/ 17 (H <Bi || Hearing Cancel ed>

02/ 28/ 17 (H STA AT 3: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120
02/ 28/ 17 (H Heard & Held

02/ 28/ 17 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 09/ 17 (H STA AT 3: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120
03/ 09/ 17 (H Heard & Held

03/ 09/ 17 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 14/ 17 (H STA AT 3: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120
BILL: HB 74

SHORT TITLE: DRIVER S LI CENSE & | D CARDS & REAL I D AC
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

01/ 23/ 17 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 23/ 17 (H) STA, FIN

02/ 07/ 17 (H) STA AT 3:00 PM GRUENBERG 120
02/ 07/ 17 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 07/ 17 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 14/ 17 (H) STA AT 3:00 PM GRUENBERG 120

W TNESS REG STER

BARRETT W LBUR, Staff

Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns
Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 14, 2017



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented Anmendnment 1 on behalf of
Representati ve Krei ss-Tonkins, prinme sponsor of HB 82.

AMY JOHNSON, Deputy Director

Di vision of Mdtor Vehicles (DW)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
82.

HEATHER (LGEIK' |) POWNELL
Hoonah, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 82.

MARLA HOWARD

Kake City Council

Kake, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 82.

KEN SKAFELSTAD, Mayor
Hoonah, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 82.

AUDREY O BRI EN

Driver Services - Juneau

Di vi sion of Mtor Vehicles (DW)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
82.

AVES THOWPSON, Executive Director

Al aska Trucki ng Associ ation (ATA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 74.

MARLA THOWPSON, Director

Di vision of Mdtor Vehicles (DW)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
74.

M NTA MONTALBO, Speci al Assi stant
O fice of the Conm ssioner
Department of Adm nistration (DOA)
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 14, 2017



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
74.

BRI AN DUFFY, Director

Adm ni strative Services Division (ASD)

Department of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs (DWA)
Joi nt Base El nendorf-Ri chardson (JBER), Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 74.

TOM ROTH, Chief QOperating Oficer

Anchorage School District (ASD)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 74.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:19:35 PM

CHAIR JONATHAN KREISS-TOWKINS called the House State Affairs
St andi ng Commttee nmeeti ng to or der at 3:19 p. m
Representatives LeDoux, Tuck, Knopp, and Kreiss-Tonkins were
present at the call to order. Representative Wol arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

HB 82- RESTRI CTED OFF HWY DRI VER S LI CENSE

3:20: 51 PM

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWI NS announced that the first order of business
would be HOUSE BILL NO 82, "An Act relating to vehicle
regi stration; relating to of f-road system restricted
noncomrer ci al drivers' | i censes; relating to off-highway
commercial drivers' licenses; relating to off-road system
eligible areas; and relating to nmotor vehicle liability
i nsurance. " [Before the conmittee was the proposed conmttee
substitute (CS) for HB 82, Version 30-LS0367\D, Martin, 2/27/17,
adopted as a work draft on 2/28/17, hereafter referred to as
Version D.]

3:21:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP noved to adopt Amendnent 1, [l abeled 30-
LS0367\D. 1, Martin, 3/14/17], which read:

Page 2, lines 21 - 22:

Delete "to the Iland-connected state highway
system and do not have | and-connected road access”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 14, 2017



Page 2, line 23:
Delete "fiscal year™
| nsert "12 nont hs"

Page 4, line 8, followng "the":
| nsert "noncommerci al "

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
3:21:40 PM

BARRETT W LBUR, Staff, Representative Jonathan Kreiss-Tonkins,
Al aska State Legislature, on behalf of Representative Kreiss-
Tonkins, prime sponsor of HB 82, stated that Anendnent 1 was
drafted in response to committee discussion during the House
State Affairs Standing Conmmttee neeting of 3/9/17. She
expl ai ned that the proposed deletion on page 2, lines 21-22, of
HB 82, would ensure that ferry-accessible communities are
eligible for the off-highway driver's license (OHDL), if they do
not have Division of Mtor Vehicle (DW) offices. She added
that even though the Alaska Mrine H ghway System (AVHS) 1is

considered a state highway, it is not a road. She said the
substitution of "12 nonths" for "fiscal year" would ensure there
is a road test every 12 nonths. Finally, she relayed the
insertion of "nonconmercial" before "notor vehicle" was a

conform ng change to make it absolutely clear that HB 82 would
not affect commercial vehicle licensure.

3:24: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked for clarification on the proposed
change from"fiscal year” to "12 nonths".

M5. WLBUR explained that if a road test was offered at the
begi nning of one fiscal year and at the end of the next fisca
year, the tinme between road tests would be nore than 12 nonths.

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked why the duration of the OHDL |icense
was not nade consistent with that of the on-road |icense.

3:26:46 PM
AMY JOHNSON, Deputy Director, Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA), explained that the 12-nonth
timeframe is to allow DW the opportunity to get to conmunities

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 14, 2017



and performroad tests, so that those communities do not end up
on the list of off-highway comunities.

M5. WLBUR offered that the 12-nonth period does not represent
the length of time the OHDL is valid, but refers to the length
of tinme that a community can be without a DW or road test
before it becones eligible for OHDLs. She added that if DWW
closed its office in a comunity, it would have 12 nonths either
to fly soneone out to offer road tests in the community, reopen
the DW office, or nake the conmmunity eligible for OHDLs.

CHAIR KREISS-TOWINS renoved his objection to Anmendnment 1
There being no further objection, Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS opened public testinony on HB 82.
3:28:49 PM

HEATHER POWELL testified that she strongly supports OHDLs for
Al aska's rural comunities. She expressed her belief that the
voices of the residents of rural commnities should be heard

She maintained that there are many state and federal roads
leading to fishing and subsistence areas, which residents rely
on to live traditionally. She asserted that the commnity is a

large famly, in which people rely upon each other. They wor k
together to gain access to these areas and to be safe while
doi ng that. She stated, "W need to be able to support our

youth and let them feel confortable, as they work toward the
ability to beconme regularly licensed."

M5. POWELL nentioned that there are costs associated with being
off the road system and living in a rural area, which are far
greater than the costs incurred by people on the road system
wth a DW available to them She cited the costs of ferry
tickets and housing, and she nentioned that sonetimes the AWMHS
does not acconmodate the needs of rural residents. She
mai ntained that providing OHDLs to residents supports rural
communities and offers a safer alternative to no license at all

She added that OHDLs offer residents the opportunity to function
within their communities, not just in a safe manner, but in a

manner that allows themto "live the |life this land provides."
She maintained that the OHDL is a tool that will nake residents
successful, and she strongly supports that. She stated that

there are many reasons for upholding rural comunities, and
absolutely one of themis safety.

3:32: 04 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 14, 2017



MARLA HOMRD, Kake City Council, testified that HB 82 is wanted
by Kake residents and would be utilized. She stated that she
knows residents who have traveled to obtain driver's |icenses,
and she knows some who cannot afford to do so but drive anyway.
She nmentioned that considering the expense of travel and the
uncertain future of the AWVHS, the proposed |egislation would
offer a small gesture to aid the poor, econony-stricken
vil | ages. Resi dents pay the highest rates for food, fuel, and
electricity. She urged the committee to pass HB 82.

3:33:48 PM

KEN SKAFELSTAD, Mayor, Gty of Hoonah, testified that he
believes HB 82 would benefit rural conmmunities and urged the
commttee to pass it out of commttee. He mai ntained that the
proposed legislation presents a conmobn-sense approach to
alleviating a difficult situation for residents.

3:35:28 PM
REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked whether npbst Hoonah residents have
full driver's licenses and if HB 82 would affect only a mnority

of people who find it difficult to access a DW.

MR. SKAFELSTAD expressed his belief that HB 82 would affect a

significant nunber of people. He relayed that nost residents
have full driver's licenses, but in obtaining those |icenses,
t hey have experienced delay, expense, and inconvenience. He

attested that it is consequential not to have an able-bodied
driver to legally contribute to the economc opportunities at
hand. The OHDL hel ps young people learn to drive responsibly by
allowwng themto legally drive in the off-road setting as they
acquai nt thenmselves with driving. Wen a young person nmust wait

nmonths and years to obtain a driver's license, it creates a
gaping hole adversely affecting that person's ability to take
advantage of opportunities. He added that OHDLs provide

comercial advantages to the community wthout creating any
deficits to the state.

3:38:41 PM
CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS cl osed public testinony on HB 82.
3:38: 54 PM

The conmittee took a brief at-ease at 3:38 p.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 14, 2017



3:38: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked for an explanation of the $66,200 on
the attached fiscal note for HB 82.

3:39:54 PM

M5. JOHNSON stated that she does not have a copy of the fisca
note and is unable to comment.

3:40: 18 PM

AUDREY O BRIEN, Driver Services - Juneau, D vision of Motor
Vehicles (DW), Departnment of Administration (DQA), al so
responded that she does not have access to the fiscal note to be
able to coment on it.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if requiring residents to obtain
driver's licenses in the comunities that were no |onger OHDL-
eligible increased the DW budget or reduced the budget. He
offered that a positive fiscal note inplies that there were
savings at some point during the tinme the change in OHDL
eligibility was inplenented.

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS responded that he believes there will be a

revision to the fiscal note that will "zero it out.”

3:42:01 PM

M5. OBRIEN stated that through contact with the director of the
DW, she can confirmthat there will be a zero-fiscal note.
3:42:30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK noved to report HB 82, as anended, out of
committee with individual recomendations and a forthcom ng zero
fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHB 82(STA) was
reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmtt ee.

HB 74-DRIVER S LI CENSE & | D CARDS & REAL | D AC

3:42: 55 PM
CHAI R KREI SS- TOWI NS announced that the final order of business

would be HOUSE BILL NO 74, "An Act relating to the
i npl ementation of the federal REAL I D Act of 2005; and relating

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 14, 2017



to issuance of identification cards and driver's licenses; and
providing for an effective date."

3:43: 38 PM

AVES THOWSON, Executive Director, Alaska Trucking Association
(ATA), testified in support of HB 74. He nmentioned that ATA is
a statew de organization representing the interests of nearly

200- nenber conpanies from Barrow to Ketchikan. He stated that
freight novenent is an essential elenent of the econony and
i npacts everyone. He offered that HB 74 provides for a
conpliant REAL ID driver's license in addition to Alaska's
current non-conpliant federal REAL ID driver's |license. He

noted that the proposed legislation would inpact commercial
driver's licenses (CDLs). He relayed that the D vision of Mdtor
Vehicles (DW) web page shows a total of nearly 33,000 Al aska
CDL holders, and there are thousands of comercial vehicle
drivers not required to hold CDLs because of the weight of their

trucks. He maintained that many comrercial drivers, both CDL
and non-CDL, need to enter mlitary installations during their
daily deliveries. The deliveries include food, fuel, consumner

goods, mlitary material, and all things necessary to supply a
small city, while providing for the national defense.

MR. THOMPSON stated that in the Anchorage area, many CDL hol ders
have a Transportation W rkers ldentification Credential (TWOQO)
card, which is a requirenent for unescorted access into the Port
of Anchor age. He added that the TWC card is a requirenent of
the US. Coast G@uard (USCG, the Transportation Security
Adm nistration (TSA), and the Departnent of Honeland Security
(DHS), and serves as a REAL ID under the federal REAL I D Act of
2005 ("REAL ID Act"). He added that the |arge nunber of CDL
holders in the state suggests that the inpact of not offering a
conpliant CDL or another driver's |icense woul d be consi derabl e.

MR. THOWPSON testified that mlitary installations are governed
by federal rules, and after June 6, 2017, Al aska-issued driver's

licenses and CDL licenses will no longer be accepted as a form
of acceptable identification (ID) [for access to mlitary
i nstallations]. He stated that drivers needing access to

mlitary bases would need to obtain a federally recognized form
of ID- a TWC card, a passport, a mlitary retiree card, or a
mlitary ID. A TWC card costs nore than $100, and it takes
four to six weeks for the card to be issued. Passports al so
cost noney and take tine for issuance.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 14, 2017



MR. THOWPSON related that there would be an inpact of the REAL
I D Act on many Al askan drivers needing access to mlitary bases.
Al t hough TWC card hol ders are comon in Anchorage, many drivers
do not have them In Fairbanks and the Interior, drivers
typically do not have TWC cards, because they do not need to
access the port of Anchorage.

MR. THOMPSON stressed that the provisions of the proposed
| egislation are a "big deal for wus." He offered that he
under st ands concerns about privacy issues and people not wanting
an additional ID, but he reiterated that DW has presented
options - either a conpliant REAL ID driver's |icense or a non-
conpliant REAL ID driver's license. He added that this gives
Al askans the choi ce. He suggested that June 6, 2017, is just a
few nonths away, and DHS will not give Al aska nore extensions.
He urged the conmttee to take swift action on HB 74.

3:49: 24 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX questioned why - if this is "such a big
deal"” and the deadline is loomng - people can't just get TWC

or passport cards. She added that the passport card only costs
$50 and is good for 10 years.

MR. THOWSON answered that the TWC card costs over $100, a
passport is $50, and they both take tinme to obtain. He
suggested that $50 is a great deal of noney to sonme of the
drivers. He added that ATA is waiting to see if HB 74 passes,
and it is not reasonable to expect truck drivers to obtain
another formof IDin the neantine.

3:51: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP referred to the letter dated January 31,
2017, submtted by M. Thonpson and included in the conmttee
packet, and asked if ATA had concerns with HB 74.

MR. THOWPSON responded that no, ATA did not oppose HB 74.

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked for clarification that TWC cards
were an acceptable formof IDto access mlitary bases.

MR. THOVPSON answer ed yes.

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked if enrollnment in TSA Prev® authori zes
access to mlitary bases.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 14, 2017



MR. THOWPSON stated that it was his understanding that TSA Prev®
and [U S. Custons and Border Protection (CBP)] dobal Entry
prograns are both acceptable forns of federal ID;, however, there
are fees invol ved.

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked for verification that operating a
vehicl e having a gross vehicle weight (GVYW of 10,000 pounds and
under does not require a conmercial |icense.

MR. THOWPSON responded that a Class A CDL is required for
operating a vehicle having a GYW of 26,000 pounds or nore, and
Class B and O ass C CDLs cover |ower GYWratings.

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP rel ayed that he received a notice from DW
stating that the REAL ID Act denmands CDL drivers provide proof

of citizenship. He suggested either CDL drivers will need to
conply with the Act regardless of whether HB 74 passes or DW
has issued the requirenent prematurely. He asked if M.

Thonpson had any information on DW' s noti ce.
MR. THOVPSON responded that he did not.
3:55:29 PM

MARLA THOWPSON, Director, Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW),
Department of Adm nistration (DOA), responded that recently the
federal government mandated that CDL drivers nust show proof of
citizenship. It is a requirenent, but does not constitute REAL
| D conpl i ance.

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked why fulfilling that requirenent would
not make a person REAL |ID conpliant.

M5. THOWPSON said that even though it is the same docunentation
that woul d be needed to obtain a REAL ID, the difference is that
Alaska is not a REAL ID-conpliant state. If HB 74 passes, it
woul d be quick and easy for the CDL holder to obtain a REAL ID
havi ng al ready provided the proof of citizenship.

3:56: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL expressed his understanding that the
critical difference for obtaining a REAL ID versus obtaining a
regular driver's license is not the docunentation, but the
verification of that docunentation

3:58: 01 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 14, 2017



M NTA MONTALBO, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Departnent of Admnistration (DOA), answered that is correct.
She said that providing proof of citizenship for a CDL is a
f eder al requi renment, and even though it is the sane
docunentation that is required for REAL ID, the CDL would not be
an acceptable ID for TSA unless Al aska becones a REAL ID state.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if in the eight years since the REAL
| D Act was passed, ATA has nade any effort on the federal |evel
totry to reverse the highly debated Act.

MR. THOWPSON answered that ATA has nmade sone effort to mnimze
the inmpact of the Act, but he is not aware of any organized
effort to repeal it. He nentioned that there have been
objections from states as evidenced by the fact that 26 states
have not conplied with the REAL I D Act.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK expressed his belief that the requirenents
that the REAL ID Act is inposing are unfair to drivers, workers,

Al askans, and Anericans. He stated his desire to explore
efforts in applying pressure at the federal level to allow
Anericans to have access [to federal installations] and to
travel .

MR. THOWPSON said that ATA's position is that it has lost this
fight and, at this point, can only conply with the federal
requirenents. He nentioned that even though ATA is wlling to
pursue applying pressure at the federal level, there is a June
6, 2017, deadl i ne, and the failure of the Alaska State
Legislature to act woul d put ATA in a bind.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK added that it is not the Alaska State
Legislature that is putting ATA in a bind, but the federal
gover nnent .

4:01: 05 PM

BRI AN DUFFY, Director, Admnistrative Services D vision (ASD),
Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs (DWA), stated that
Joint Base Elnendorf-Richardson (JBER) currently is conplying
with provisions of the REAL ID Act. He said, "Visitors who w sh
to obtain unescorted access and do not have [U. S. Departnent of

Def ense] (DoD) identification cards or others which are
conpliant wth REAL ID Act are being denied entry or being
required to be escorted by a ... DoD ID card holder while on the
[mlitary] installation.” This includes individuals wth

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 14, 2017



driver's licenses from Maine, Mssouri, and Mntana, and those
wi th non-enhanced |icenses from M nnesota and Washi ngton. He
attested that if there is no change in Alaska statutes by the
expiration date of June 6, 2017, then Al aska driver's licenses
will be designated as insufficient. He added that ID cards from
six additional states will also be added to the list of ID cards
designated as insufficient, assumng no change occurs in those
states. Maine and Montana were added to that list at the end of
January 2017. He maintained that installations have no waiver
authority, and there is no expectation that they would pursue
any.

MR. DUFFY stated that not everyone needing access to Al aska
installations has DoD ID cards. He nentioned that JBER has sone
50 mission partners - sone federal, sonme state, and sone a
conbi nation of public and private organi zations. Base | eaders
estimate approximately 14,000 contractors and |ocal service
providers may be affected [if Al aska does not become REAL |ID
conpliant], and alternative forns of ID would be required for
access to the mlitary installation. He asserted that it would
be highly unreasonable to assune that the installation would
provi de escorts for all of these visitors. He nentioned there
are other organizations that are affected, such as those
enployed to nove mlitary famlies onto or off mlitary
installations. He added that on JBER, all 3,262 mlitary famly
housing units are privatized; they are operated and owned by a
private organization. Consequently, there is an associated
wor kf or ce t hat requires access to t he installation

Additionally, DWA, which is headquartered on the Richardson
side of JBER, enconpasses a 260-person organization.

MR. DUFFY explained that currently all of these people serving
JBER are issued Defense Bionetrics ldentification System (DBIDS)
cards, which allow them to have unescorted access to the

mlitary installation. To get that card, they must produce a
REAL | D-conpliant formof ID for verification. Those cards wl|
be allowed to expire at their normal expiration dates. He

stated that if HB 74 does not pass, all the people with DBIDS
cards who wish to maintain unescorted access to the installation
and, in nmany cases, need access to be able to report to work,
woul d have to submt other forns of ID sufficient for issuance
of DBIDS cards.

4:05:34 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 14, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked how the states that are not REAL ID
conpliant are handling the dire situation that M. Duffy
descri bed.

MR. DUFFY responded that 24 states have conplied with the REAL

| D Act. He added that for those states that have not, their
driver's licenses are insufficient to allow unescorted access to
mlitary installations. He gave the exanple of Joint Base
Lew s- McChord, south of Spokane, Washington, which issues about
220, 000 passes per year. If a person's only ID is from a non-
REAL | D-conpliant state, he/she is not allowed unescorted access
to the base. He/she nust have a sponsor or will be turned away.

In response to Representative LeDoux, he conceded that he did
not know what is done regarding workers who need access to the
base.

4:06: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP recomrended that the mlitary installations
in Alaska look at "Plan B" to ensure suppliers have access to
mlitary bases, in case HB 74 does not pass.

MR. DUFFY relayed that mlitary bases are federal facilities,
not state facilities, so DWA has limted opportunity to adjust
the federal posture on REAL ID. He added that the mlitary
installations in Alaska wuld conmply wth the federal
requi renents, as other states have done, and convey to workers
what they will need to do to work on base.

4:07:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK nentioned that M nnesota's REAL ID bill was
bl ocked on March 6, 2017. He asked if Mnnesota has mlitary
bases.

MR. DUFFY answered that he did not believe Mnnesota had any
active installations, but may have [U S. National] Guard or
[mlitary] reserve installations. He stated that bot h
Washi ngton and M nnesota have the enhanced version option of a
driver's license, which is conpliant with the REAL ID Act and
can be used for unescorted access to federal installations.

REPRESENTATIVE TUCK stated that the Mnnesota |egislature
rejected sone neasure of REAL ID on March 6 by a vote of 29-38.
He relayed that if M nnesota does not [enact] a change to its
driver's licenses, residents wll need additional IDs or
enhanced driver's licenses to access federal facilities.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 14, 2017



MR. DUFF, in response to Representative Tuck, explained that
DBIDS cards are for those with a recurring need to access
mlitary installations, and the card is valid for one year.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if a passport is an acceptable ID for
obtaining a DBIDS card.

MR. DUFFY answered yes.

4:10: 43 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked if a person could enter a military
facility wth just a passport. He suggested that if the
passport has not been verified, then it would not be REAL ID
conpl i ant.

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL expressed his understanding that in the
past, DW would have taken an |ID at face value, whereas
currently, DW verifies that ID through a connection wth other
dat abases. He suggested that a passport would suffice for
access to federal facilities, but it is not a REAL ID.

4:12: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK said that Al aska used to send docunentation
for driver's licenses to Fairbanks to be held in the Al aska
State Troopers' barracks, before the current practice of sending
it to Indiana. He maintained that the files were secure but not
el ectronic. He expressed his understanding that under the REAL
ID Act, the files would be transferred to a database through
connection with a "hub," along with every other state. The data
would be centralized, mai ntai ned securely by a private
organi zation, and used for the verification process. He added
that the docunents are stored as inmges for up to five years

regardl ess of whether the docunentation results in a REAL ID.
He suggested that security and privacy remain issues in this
scenario in which private entities have access to information in
a central |ocation.

MR. DUFFY nentioned that he would approach JBER officials
regardi ng Representative Knopp's question about the process that
is used to convert a conpliant IDinto a DBIDS card.

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP reiterated that he is interested in finding
out if a passport allows access to a mlitary base or if it is
the wverification of the passport that allows access, as
suggested by Representative Wol.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 14, 2017



4:15:43 PM

M5. THOWPSON explained that currently DW personnel view
docunents and take them at face val ue. She said that under HB
74, personnel would exam ne each docunent to determne if it is
a conpliant docunent. She stated that storage of the records
woul d be required, but there are currently regulations requiring
storage of records, so it is already being done. She added that
the records are stored at DW, they do not go Qutside;, DW
shares as little as possible; and they are kept for seven years.

4:17:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL relayed that currently DW scans and stores
docunents electronically, and the data is not shared with an
outside entity. He asked if, in the future under the REAL ID
Act, the process would renmain the same or if the data would be
stored in a central database.

M5. THOWSON replied that the data is maintained on |ocal
servers and is not shared Qutside. She attested that with REAL
| D, that practice would be the sane.

4:18: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if any of the states refusing to
inplement REAL ID have mlitary bases and, if so, how have the
mlitary bases dealt with this situation

MR. DUFFY responded that Fort Leavenworth in Mssouri is a
federal installation in a non-conpliant state. He nmai ntai ned
that in response to this situation, the installation refuses
unescorted access to anyone without a REAL |ID-conpliant form of
| D.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what mlitary base personnel in
Alaska are doing to ensure access to mlitary bases. She
offered that not only do people need to access mlitary bases,
but the mlitary bases need the people to come onto the base.
She asked what provisions the mlitary is planning to ensure it
can bring people on base who are needed.

MR. DUFFY responded that one of two things would happen: t he
i ndi vi dual requesting unescorted access would be turned away, or
an escort would be found. He added that the latter would not be
a sustainable solution for the long term He suggested that a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 14, 2017



third option is that the individual desiring unescorted access
obtains a REAL I D-conpliant |ID

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the individual could get the REAL
| D-conpliant ID fromthe mlitary.

MR. DUFFY answered that an individual could obtain a DBIDS card
but would need to provide a REAL ID-conpliant form of ID to
vouch for his/her credentials before he/she is issued the card.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if a person in a non-conpliant state
who does not have a passport could get the DBIDS card.

MR. DUFFY responded that he does not think so but would find
out .

4:22:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked for clarification on the dates of the
REAL |1 D wai ver peri od.

MR. DUFFY answered that currently the normal process allows
access to the mlitary bases, but after June 6, absent any
change in the statute, access to mlitary bases may be
different.

4:23:35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked about access to a mlitary base for
chil dren acconpani ed by a parent with a passport.

MR. DUFFY explained that through the current process, DoD
dependent children age 10 and older are issued DoD ID cards.
For children of <civilians, |ID credentials are validated for
those age 16 and older; for those under age 16, access is
al l oned wi thout validated credentials.

REPRESENTATIVE TUCK reiterated that a mlitary dependent
automatically gets an ID card at age 10. He asked what
docunentation is needed for that child to be issued an ID card.

MR. DUFFY replied that a birth certificate is required to
register a child in the Defense Enrollnent Eligibility Reporting
System (DEERS) shortly after birth. He expl ained that DEERS
contains details on mlitary nenbers and their famlies and
allows mlitary dependents to draw entitl enents.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 14, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked for confirmation: children of a
civilian on base need to show ID if age 16 or older, but not if
under age 16.

MR. DUFFY replied that was the threshold when he was in command,
but he would verify that with mlitary personnel on base.

4:27:45 PM

TOM ROTH, Chief Operating Oficer, Anchorage School District
(ASD), stated that on behalf of Dr. Deena Bishop, Superintendent
of ASD, he was testifying to express the district's endorsenent
of HB 74. He provided information and analysis concerning the
i npact of federal inplenentation of Phase 3 of the REAL ID Act
on ASD.

MR. ROTH relayed that ASD provides education to 1,597 students
at five elenmentary schools located on the JBER installation.
Most of these students are dependents of active duty U S. Arny
soldiers and U S. Ar Force airnen. He said the district's
information technology (IT) departnent, which is inclusive of
the district's data infrastructure in its entirety, is |ocated
on JBER in the Kennedy Data Center. He added that JBER is al so
home to the district's fine arts departnent.

MR ROTH stated that the district's Pupil Transportation
Depart ment buses 26 special needs students from JBER to schools
t hroughout the district and 513 secondary school students to
m ddl e and high schools in Eagle R ver and Anchorage. At any
given tinme during the standard school day, up to 500 ASD
enpl oyees support JBER activities, schools, and students.

MR. ROTH asserted that the district's mssion on JBER is

holistic and conprehensive. He added that although the five
el enentary schools and the Kennedy Data Center reside on a
federal installation, ASD enpl oyees: provi de education to all

students; provide admnistrative oversight to school staff;
mai ntain, repair, and clean all ASD facilities and equipnent;
perform and nmanage construction projects; mnanage and naintain
networks; and generally, perform all functions expected of a
nei ghbor hood elenentary school. He said, "Sinply put, our
m ssion on JBER, educating all students for success in life, is
an inperative, and it requires access for all ASD enpl oyees,"
i ncludi ng those who substitute teach or work part-tinme.

MR. ROTH enphasized that now is the time for ASD to act to
sustain its JBER m ssion. He related that the district wll

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 14, 2017



mandate current and new enpl oyees wi thout REAL |ID-conpliant |Ds
to obtain such IDs in early April. This is a necessary and
tinmely action to allow sufficient processing tine for enployees
to receive conpliant I Ds before the June 6 inplenentation date
He asked for tinely |legislative action to enact HB 74.

4:31:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked if all the 1,597 school children are
children of mlitary personnel |iving on base.

MR. ROTH responded that of that nunber, there are about 100
students who are dependents of civilian personnel and reside in
JBER housi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked if children age 10 and older wll be
required to have bionetric cards or REAL |Ds.

MR. ROTH, referring to M. Duffy's testinony, stated that
dependents of mlitary personnel are not required to have any ID
until age 10, at which tinme their parents nust obtain |ID cards
for them He said that those children would already be enrolled
in DEERS. He explained that DBIDS is for youth age 16 and ol der
to gain access to mlitary installations.

4:33:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK referred to the busloads of children com ng
on base and asked if only the bus driver would need a REAL ID
and if there is or wuld be any conplication for children
accessing the mlitary bases.

MR ROTH replied that «currently only the bus drivers are
obligated to present their IDs to access the base; there is no
requi renent for students. He said that he didn't know if that
requi renent woul d change when Phase 3 is inplenented on June 6.

4:35:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK relayed that current Al aska |aw states that
DOA shall not spend any noney to inplenment the REAL ID Act. He
asked if the State of Al aska has entered an agreenment with the
American Association of Mtor Vehicle Admnistrators (AAWA)
regarding a state-to-state verification system

M5. THOWPSON answered that AAWA is a non-profit, "best
practices" organization of all the states and provinces that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 14, 2017



offer driver's |licenses. The agreenent with AAWA does not
commt Alaska to inplenenting REAL ID but provides states with
access to databases containing informati on useful to states.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK nentioned that Alaska DW currently is
exchangi ng information through AAMVA and asked if it can obtain
information fromother states as well.

M5. THOWPSON answered that DW does not connect wth AAWA
directly but uses the data connections within AAWA to verify
data such as social security nunmbers (SSNs). She stated that
DW can verify data through queries but does not share data.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if DW has signed a contract wth
AAMVA to get access to SSNs, because it has been difficult to
work directly with the Social Security Adm nistration (SSA).

M5. THOMPSON responded that DW does not have a contract wth
AAWA. She stated that the state DWs worked wth SSA to be
able to access data through a process established by AAMWA. She
added that other databases used for wverification through this
process are Social Security Nunmber Online Verification (SSOLV)
within the SSA, Problem Driver Pointer System (PDPS) within the
U S. Departnment of Transportation (USDOT), and State-to-State
(S2S) Verification Service to check for driver's licenses in
ot her states.

4:39: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked for clarification that DW did not
sign a contract with AAWMA but uses its services.

M5. Thonpson responded yes, DW uses AAWA' s services. In
response to a question from Representative Tuck about paynents
to AAMWA for those services, she said that there are paynents to
AAWA based on usage. She conceded that she woul d have to check
on whether there is a contract.

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS announced HB 74 woul d be hel d over.

4:41:16 PM

ADJ OURNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 4:41
p. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 14, 2017



